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STATUS:

INVENTORY NO:

LOCATION AND
BOUNDARY :

DESCRIPTION:

NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (VICTORIA)

LIMEBURNER'S POINT AREA, GEELONG

Limeburner's Point Area is designated as
Recorded Landscape: "those parts of the
physical environment, both natural and man-made,
which contribute to the heritage of Australia
and which should be recorded and whose
preservation is encouraged."

A specific site within the Recorded Landscape,
on the eastern side of Limeburner's Point

is further Classified which refers to

"those parts of the physical environment,

both natural and man-made, which contribute
to the heritage of Australla and which must
be preserved."

The Limeburner's Point Area is approximately
2 kilometres from Geelong, close to the
Eastern Gardens (Botanic Gardens). The
boundaries of the area are shown on the
attached map.

The Classified site contains a number of features
related to the Limeburning industry that are
of historical interest and significance, namely

4 lime kilns.
- a small stone-lined pit.
* a section of cobble-stoned roadway.
« the remains of an old jetty.

Preliminary research suggests that limestone
quarrying and lime-burning were in progress
within the western part of the Recorded

Landscape in the late 1830s. The existing kilns,
within the Classified site were constructed

in the late 1860s and were operated untll

the mid 1880s.

The lime kllng, constructed of brick and blue-
stone are in varying stages of dereliction,
although some of the stonework is in remarkably
good condition. The kilns are set into the
sides of the steep slopes that go down to the
beach and the circular chimney bases of these
kilns (over 1 metre in diameter) and the stone-
lined pit are visible at the top of the slopes.

The cobble-stoned roadway can, with some
perseverence, be followed from the end of
Lime Burners Road down towards the foreshore.



HISTORICAL
EVOLUTION:

2:Q§

At one point the edge of the roadway has been
exposed by erosion, showing clearly the rubble\\
base. It has been suggested that this road Y
may, in fact, have been a tramway but further \A
investigation would be needed to verify this. 1

The remains of an old jetty, evidenced by brick
and wharf timber lying in the inter-tidal zone,

arevisible near what appears to be the end of

the roadway.

Further features of the area that may, with
careful archaeological investigation, be
precisely located and identified are

. the approach roadway to each kiln,
possibly also cobble-stoned, which
are indicated by the form of the land surface
between the top of Lime Burners Road
and the kiln chimneys.

. the site of the powder magazine.

the sites of the limestone and marble
quarries.

Ready access to a source of lime was essential
for the intense building that occurred during

the early years of both the Melbourne and Geelong
settlements.

In Melbourne, it appears that lime was first
produced from the burning of sea shells but as
this source was not able to meet the demands of
rapid growth, limestone quarrying and burning
operations were comme?ced on the Nepean
Peninsula in 1838-39."*

The earliest reference to the export of lime

from Geelong is in 1841, when .the Dusty Miller

and other schooners took cargoes of lime from
Geelong to Launceston?-, indicating that this
industry may have commenced several years earlier.

Lime kilns were operated by putting logs at

the base of the kiln and layering limestone and
wood alternatively until the kiln was full. The
wood at the base was then set alight and would
burn for up to one week before the kiln was
ready to be emptied of its lime.

The first land sale was held in Geelong on

the 14th February, 1839, but only three blocks
were put up for sale and, in fact, little land
was offered for sale in Geelong until the latter
half of the 1840s. Despite this, the years
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resulting in a large number of new buildings.
In 1849 the Geelong Advertiser reported:

"Dwellings and handsome edifices are
springing up in all directions with
astounding rapidity."4-

While it is known that some early shipments
of lime went to Launceston rather than Melbourne,
presumably due to a better financial return
rather than a lack of demand for lime on the
Melbourne markets, there is not a great deal
of evidence on the location of other markets
for Geelong's lime. However, La Trobe, on

a visit to Shortland's Bluff, Queenscliff,
during January - April, 1844, indicated that
Melbourne was one important destination for
Geelong lime:

"...My visits were as frequent as
circumstances permitted and the constant
traffic with the opposite shore by
lime-boats trading to Melbourne, and

the outward-bound vessels, enabled me

to keep up a pretty constant communication
when at headquarters."S'

The limeburning industry developed slowly

but was not really organised into an efficient
business until 1852 when it was purchased by
George Cakebread. Prior to this, Mr. Boucher
{or Bouchier) is known to have had a licence
for limeburning on the shore at Limeburners
Point in 1845. During this year, at least one
new kiln was excavated and a circular
excavation, about 20 foot deep, was made near the
shore. By 1848 the kilns were being operated
by the partnership of Taylor and Boucher and,
in 1850, C.J. Jenner took over quarrying and’
limeburning on the site.

Initially, the limeburning operation adopted a
system of: :

"burning the lime at the spot where it was
quarried, but the limeburners later were
required to do the burning further east,
closer to the beach. In the new situation,
4 kilns were operating in 1856, the largest

kiln holding 1200 bushells (400 bags) of
lime."6.

Various maps indicated that at some stage there
were lime kilns located very close tg Limeburners
Point’+ and to the west of the pointa' ¥
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Another map, possibly dated around 191510,
indicates an area of disused quarries on

the southern side of what is now Hearne Parade
at Limeburners Point. Based on the above
description, it is likely that these were
limestone or marble quarries..

George Cakebread, described as a businessman

and civic 1eader11- and a mason and bricklayer

by tradel2., bought the limeburning operations

in 1852. During the period that Mr. Cakebread
operated the kilns, the industry was subjected

to much criticism due to the destruction of the
beach slopes by quarrying and the creation of
traffic along what many citizens felt should be

a first class promenade. There were redquests

to the Council from distressed citizens on the
need to protect the "lovely Eastern beach downs" 13
Cakebread sold his interest to Blair and Campbell
in 1866.

The Powder Magazine, a stout little building
with brick walls 2% feet thick, a domed roof

and gable facing the bay on the northern side,
was opened in 1854. By 1898 storage of powder

in the Magazine had ceased. 14+ 1t was dismantled
in the same year and its materials used in

the erection @f Blakiston & Co., brick store in
Corio Street.15.

A company, entitled Ronald's Marble Quarries,
was set up in 1862 by Mr. Robert Shanklin on
the basis of the discovery of marble by the

the late Alfred Ronalds some years earlier.

The company leased three acres of Limeburners
Point from the Government. Work on the site
commenced quickly and several blocks of marble
were uncovered near the highwater mark. Within
the first week 7 tons of material was extracted
until seawater entered the 7 foot deep excavation
and work ceased. Disputes about the quality of
the marble and the problems associated with the
site resulted in the Y%nding up of the company
within the same year.'”*

An increase in the demand for Geelong Lime
resulted in a proposal in 1853 to extend the
area used for lime quarrying by 7% acres, to

the west of the Powder Magazine. The area
suggested was then extended to 8 acres in two
separate lots and offered for lease. In 1875 both
lots were leased by W.A. Blair and C. Campbell
on behalf of the Victorian Lime & Cement Co.,
who were currently operating the other quarries
and the kiln at Limeburners Point. Work was
soon commenced with the quarrying into the slope



SIGNIFICANCE=

for approx1mate1y 100 yards at a depth of
several feet.

In the same year, the Public Works Department
undertook experiments to prove that the lime
from Lara (Duck Ponds) was superior to that
from Limeburners Point. The Melbourne Builders
Lime & Cement Co., were then the operators of
the kiln at Duck Ponds.18-

By the mid 1880s the industry at Limeburners Point
was in decline, perhaps due to .the comparative
quality of the lime or the successful operation

of the various other limeburning concerns, such

as the one at Lara. The increase in competition
for relatively limited markets due to the
expansion of the railway system to other lime
producing areas, may have also had an adverse
impact on the industry at Limeburners Point.

Information on the now-derelict jetty has been
difficult to obtain but Geelong historian,
Mr. Brown, has stated:

"Originally flat-bottomed boats from

as far away as Melbourne used to load
from carts driven into the water, and
also from a jetty which I can remember
as being a tumbledown when I was a small
boy in 1913." 19.

The entire area of Limeburners Point is an
important historic landscape that records the
development of an industry that provided an
important commodity essential in the establishment
of several large urban settlements, namely
Launceston, Melbourne and Geelong.

An important example of one of Victoria's
earliest industries, it is of considerable
historical interest and significance. This

is enhanced by the fact that it is probably one
of the earliest sites for this partlcular
1ndustry in Victoria.

The major features of this industry that are
known to still exist form an important historical
landscape and have therefore been included in

the Classified area. The designation,

Recorded Landscape, has been applied -

to the entire Limeburners Point area and it is
believed that other important components of

this industrial landscape may well be located

as a result of archaeological survey within this
broader area.



MANAGEMENT

The major initial requirement for the
management of this site is for a comprehens
survey to be undertaken to identify the
existing and former features of this site.
While it is anticipated that a survey would
focus on the Classified area, attention shoul
also be given to the entire area de51gnated
as a Recorded Landscape.

This survey should include two basic
components - historical research and field
investigation. Prior to any excavation

or clearing work being undertaken, a detailed
research report should be produced which:

a. details the nature and likely extent of
as well as its h15tor1ca1 development and
role.

b. makes recommendations of the future use
and interpretation of the site, including
guidelines on how these recommendations can
be implemented.

c. indicates threats to the stability of
of the site so that suitable steps can be
taken to provide for the protection and
conservation of the site.

As both the Classified and the Recorded

area 1nclude land that is

held by various owners, discussions should b«
held at an early stage in the survey between
these owners.

Further degredatlon of the site should be
prevented by implementing erosion control
measures that will assist in the long-term
protection of the site.
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H1288/ H7721-0003 H12098 7

Site Name: Limeburners Point Lime Kilns, Causeway and Structure Pad
(Boucher Dyer and Co. Victorian Lime and Cement Company

Limeburners)
Site Type: Industry/ Maritime
Listings:

Photograph of Site:

Limeburners Point East

Reproduction from C. 5. Muckin's picture in Geelomg Art Gallery entisied “Cuniug ow the Beach mear Li meburnors
Paiw— 1868,

Cutting on the beach near leeburners Point 1868 (In Brownhill, 1990:108 from Geelong Art
Gallery Collection)




Chapter 5.7:

Maritime Infrastructure Heritage Project Geelong:
Limeburners Point to Point Henry

Details of the matrix of the in the intertidal zone

Limeburners Point Causeway from Nortﬁ

—~ i -
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Intact section of the Limeburners Point Causeway located at the end of the curved section above the
high water mark (facing north)
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Limeburners Point Structure Pad Site
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Straight section of Limeburners Point Causeway leading to Lime Kilns. Note sporadic clusters of
roadway materials. \

Details of Limeburners Point Causeway matrix in front of western most Lime Kiln
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Section of the Limeburners Point Causeway at high tide, showing its probable former height and use
(Brad Duncan Collection)

Limeburners Point Lime Kiln (Brad Duncan Collection)
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Limeburners Quarries 1865-1890s

Limeburners Quarry Leases in 187§ at Eastern Beach (G 164, Geelong Heritage Centre)

Location
AMG (AGD 1966):
Lime Ki]ns Causeway and Foundatlons
2 270946 5774452

Lime Quames Eastem Beaoh
b 270406 5774620

Map Name: and Nuinber: Geelong 7721

Cadastral Location

County: Allotment: Block:
Parish: Parcel:

Local Government Area:
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Description of Site

Brief Description of Site:

The site has already been extensively documented by McCarthy and Varman (1982).
Causeway consists of curved road extending to the edge of the reef platform near deeper
water, and runs along the shoreline in front of the lime kilns themselves. Causeway
consists of brick and stone rubble, which is barely discernable (though relatively intact) at
the western end offshore, and intact section at the foreshore end of the curved section.
Sporadic clusters of bricks and stones mark the route of the causeway along the
foreshore, and the clusters are generally located in front of the lime kilns. This suggests
that either there were loading platforms at these points in which to stack and load the lime
produce, or that these possibly originate from modern work to ¢lear deposits choking the
kilns. Extensive terraces remain in the location of the former Eastern Beach Quarries
used the Limeburners Point Limeburners

Key Components of Site:
Lime Kilns, Causeway, Structure (Hut?) Pad

Condition: Good :

Present Use: Foreshore Reserve Threats:

Statement of Significance:

One of the earliest industries in Geelong. Only examples of extant lime kilns in this area.

Recorded By: Brad Duncan Date: 29/4/2004

Plan of Site:

All features Associated with Site:

Interpretation of Site:

The site has already been extensively documented by McCarthy and Varman (1982).
Causeway consists of curved road extending to the edge of the reef platform near deeper
water, and runs along the shoreline in front of the lime kilns themselves. Causeway
consists of brick and stone rubble, which is barely discernable (though relatively intact) at
the western end offshore, and intact section at the foreshore end of the curved section.
Sporadic clusters of bricks and stones mark the route of the causeway along the
foreshore, and the clusters are generally located in front of the lime kilns. This suggests
that either there were loading platforms at these points in which to stack and load the lime
produce, or that these possibly originate from modern work to clear deposits choking the
kilns.

History of Site:

Eastern Beach Limeburning

Limeburning in Geelong began on the Western side of Lime Burners Point as early 1838,
when James Boucher and Patrick Melville established quarries and kilns (Harrington,
2000: 34). The first exports of lime were sent to Launceston in 1841, as it was cheaper to
transport it there than to Melbourne. The formative years of lime burning in this area
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were characterised by ad hoc ventures, before it became an organised industry. The
Eastern Beach area was a focus for the industry. One of the earliest formulated attempts
to quarry the stone was undertaken by Boucher and Taylor in 1848. They were taken over
by Messr Taylor in 1852, and passed again soon after to George Cakebread (by 1858 —
G134), who played a major role in its formulation.

Limeburners Point West Limeburners

Criticism was often levelled at the damage done to the beach slopes by quarrying and
drays transporting timber. Most of the early lime was carted around the back of the
Botanic Gardens to the Portarlington Road. Lime burning was originally undertaken close
to the deposits themselves, but the limeburners were later required to conduct their
activities closer to the eastern foreshore on the beach after public concern was raised for
the tourism and recreational facilities at Eastern Beach. Four kilns were operating by
1866, and the fires burned continuously to keep up with the ever increasing need for lime
in the colonies.

By 1873, when demand for lime peaked, a temporary extension of quarrying area was
proposed that encroached on the Botanic Gardens Grounds, but the lease was encouraged
by the Minister. An area from the Beach Battery to near the Powder Magazine was
proposed, and the allotments were leased by the Victorian Lime and Cement Company
(who were represented by Blair and Campbell) in 1875 for seven years, which also
operated the other quarries at Limeburners Point (Cakebread, Dyer and Co.). To reach the
stone, the land face was cut away for 100 yards for several feet deep. The venture did not
prove overly profitable, as it had to be undertaken close to the scrutiny of a popular beach
front and the limestone was being slowly exhausted. By the 1880s, only one kiln was
operating, and the weekly returns had been reduced tenfold (Brownhill, 1990: 403 -406;
Harrington, 2000:34).

Limeburners Point was originally known as Galena Point, with the original name
Limeburners Point being allocated to the entrance of what is now known as Limeburners
Bay (in the 1950s called Limeburners Creek, entrance to the Duck Ponds) (Brownhill,
1990:406).

Limeburning was undertaken at the Duck Ponds, which in 1875 was producing superior
quality lime to that at Limeburners Point. Test showed that the Duck Ponds lime retained
its supportive qualities in wet conditions, whereas the Point lime fell apart. The Duck
Ponds were run by the Melbourne Builders Lime and Cement Company (Brownbhill,
1990: 402, 403). The Duck Ponds are labelled in Henry's 1864 chart of Geelong near the
current location of the Geelong Grammar School foreshore.

Informants and other information:

Brownhill, Walter, Randolph, 1990, 7he History of Geelong and Corio Bay, with
postscript 1955-1990, Geelong: Geelong Advertiser
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Harrington, Jane, 2000, An Archaeological and Historical Overview of Limeburning in
Victoria, Melbourne: Heritage Council Victoria

G134 Public Lands Office, 1858, Town of Geelong

G164, Public Lands Office, 1858, Town of Geelong
G183, Skene, 1851, Plan of Town Park and Public Gardens, Geelong

Map Showing Location of Site:
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Site Name: Limeburners Poinrtﬁfl?l(ilns, Causeway and Structure Pad
(Boucher Dyer and Co. Victorian Lime and Cement Company

Limeburners)
Site Type: Industry/ Maritime

Photograph of Site:

Limeburners Point East

ture n Geelong Art Gallery entitled "Catting sa the Bench wear Limelurners
“oieet— | 568,

Cutting on the beach near Limeburners Point 1868 (In Brownhill, 1990:108 from Geelong Art
Gallery Collection)

Intact section of the Limeburners Point Causeway located at the end of the curved section above the
high water mark (facing north)
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Limeburners Point Causeway from North

Limeburners Point Structure Pad Site
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Limeburners Point Structure Pad Site

Straight section of Limeburners Point Causeway leading to Lime Kilns. Note sporadic clusters of
roadway materials.

Details of Limeburners Point Causeway matrix in front of western most Lime Kiln




Chapier £8.7; Maritime Infrastructure Heritage Project Geelong:
Limeburners Point 1o Poimt Henry

Section of the Limeburners Point Causeway at high tide, showing its probable former height and use
(Brad Duncan Collection)

Limeburners Point Lime Kiln (Brad Duncan Collection)
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Limeburners Quarries 1865-1890s

-
}@\Mﬂw

Limeburners Qunrry I.Jeﬁaes in lS"fEr Eastern Beac“h (G 164, Geelong Heritage Centre)

|

Location e

AMG (AGD 1966): | |

Lime Kilns, Causeway and Found tior
270946 /5774452

Lime Quarries Eastern Beach
: 270406 5774620
Map Name: and Nnmber Geelong 7721

Description of Site

Brief Description of Site: The site has already been extensively documented by
McCarthy and Varman (1982). Causeway consists of curved road extending to the edge
of the reef platform near deeper water, and runs along the shoreline in front of the lime
kilns themselves. Causeway consists of brick and stone rubble, which is barely
discernable (though relatively intact) at the western end offshore, and intact section at the
foreshore end of the curved section. Sporadic clusters of bricks and stones mark the route
of the causeway along the foreshore, and the clusters are generally located in front of the
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lime kilns. This suggests that either there were loading platforms at these points in which
to stack and load the lime produce, or that these possibly originate from modern work to
clear deposits choking the kilns. Extensive terraces remain in the location of the former
Eastern Beach Quarries used the Limeburners Point Limeburners

Key Components of Site: Lime Kilns, Causeway, Structure (Hut?) Pad

Condition: Good

Present Use: Foreshore Reserve Threats:

Statement of Significance: One of the earliest industries in Geelong. Only examples of
extant lime kilns in this area.

Recorded By: Brad Duncan Date: 29/4/2004

Interpretation of Site:

The site has already been extensively documented by McCarthy and Varman (1982).
Causeway consists of curved road extending to the edge of the reef platform near deeper
water, and runs along the shoreline in front of the lime kilns themselves. Causeway
consists of brick and stone rubble, which is barely discernable (though relatively intact) at
the western end offshore, and intact section at the foreshore end of the curved section.
Sporadic clusters of bricks and stones mark the route of the causeway along the
foreshore, and the clusters are generally located in front of the lime kilns. This suggests
that either there were loading platforms at these points in which to stack and load the lime
produce, or that these possibly originate from modern work to clear deposits choking the
kilns. ]

History of Site:

Eastern Beach Limeburning

Limeburning in Geelong began on the Western side of Lime Burners Point as early 1838,
when James Boucher and Patrick Melville established quarries and kilns (Harrington,
2000: 34). The first exports of lime were sent to Launceston in 1841, as it was cheaper to
transport it there than to Melbourne. The formative years of lime burning in this area
were ¢haracterised by ad hoc ventures. before it became an organised industry. The
Eastern Beach area was a focus for the industry. One of the earliest formulated attempts
to quarry the stone was undertaken by Boucher and Taylor in 1848. They were taken over
by Messr Taylor in 1852, and passed again soon after to George Cakebread (by 1858 —
G134), who played a major role in its formulation.

Limeburners Point West Limeburners

Criticism was often levelled at the damage done to the beach slopes by quarrying and
drays transporting timber. Most of the early lime was carted around the back of the
Botanic Gardens to the Portarlington Road. Lime burning was originally undertaken close
to the deposits themselves, but the limeburners were later required to conduct their
activities closer to the eastern foreshore on the beach after public concern was raised for
the tourism and recreational facilities at Eastern Beach. Four kilns were operating by
1866, and the fires burned continuously to keep up with the ever increasing need for lime
in the colonies.
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By 1873, when demand for lime peaked, a temporary extension of quarrying area was
proposed that encroached on the Botanic Gardens Grounds, but the lease was encouraged
by the Minister. An area from the Beach Battery to near the Powder Magazine was
proposed, and the allotments were leased by the Victorian Lime and Cement Company
(who were represented by Blair and Campbell) in 1875 for seven years, which also
operated the other quarries at Limeburners Point (Cakebread, Dyer and Co.). To reach the
stone, the land face was cut away for 100 yards for several feet deep. The venture did not
prove overly profitable, as it had to be undertaken close to the scrutiny of a popular beach
front and the limestone was being slowly exhausted. By the 1880s, only one kiln was
operating, and the weekly returns had been reduced tenfold (Brownhlll 1990: 403 -406;
Harrington, 2000:34).

Limeburners Point was originally known as Galena Point, with the original name
Limeburners Point being allocated to the entrance of what 15 now known as Limeburners
Bay (in the 1950s called Limeburners Creek, entrance to the Duck Ponds) (Brownhill,
1990:406).

Limeburning was undertaken at the Duck Ponds, which in 1875 was producing superior
quality lime to that at Limeburners Point. Test showed that the Duck Ponds lime retained
its supportive qualities in wet conditions, whereas the Point lime fell apart. The Duck
Ponds were run by the Melbourne Builders Lime and Cement Company (Brownbhill,
1990: 402, 403). The Duck Ponds are labelled in Henry's 1864 chart of Geelong near the

current location of the Geelong Grammar School fotes’hnre,.

Informants and ot.he'r- information:

Brownhill, Walter, Randolph, 1990, 7he History of Geelong and Corio Bay, with
postscript 1955-1990, Geelong: Geelong Advertiser

Hal‘i'in'gﬁn, Jane, 2000, 4n Archacological and Historical Overview of Limeburning in
Victoria, Melbourne: Heritage Council Victoria

McCarthy, Jquiﬁ, and Varman, R., 1982, Limeburners Point, Geelong: An
Archaeological Report. National Trust of Australia (Victoria)

Plans:

G134 Public Lands Office, 1858, Town of Geelong (Geelong Heritage Centre).

G164, Public Lands Office, 1858, Town of Geelong (Geelong Heritage Centre).

G183, Skene, 1851, Plan of Town Park and Public Gardens (Geelong Heritage Centre).
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Map Showing Location of Site:
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